
 

 
AGENDA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
5000 CLARK AVENUE 

LAKEWOOD, CALIFORNIA 
 

March 22, 2016 
 
 
 
RECEPTION:  “Lakewood Celebrates . . .” 6:00 p.m. 
 
CALL TO ORDER 7:30 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION:  Monsignor Joseph Greeley, St. Pancratius Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  We ton U Woko Camp Fire Club 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers 
 
ANNUAL REORGANIZATION OF CITY COUNCIL 
Election of Mayor and Vice Mayor 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
All items listed within this section of the agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion without separate discussion.  Any Member of Council may request an item be removed for 
individual discussion or further explanation.  All items removed shall be considered immediately 
following action on the remaining items. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held March 8, 2016 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 Approval of Monthly Report of Investment Transactions 
 
RI-5 Authorization to Issue Purchase Order to Cost Share Paving 215th Street East of Pioneer Boulevard 
 
RI-6 Adoption of Resolution No. 2016-12; Amending Resolution Establishing Compensation, Rules and 

Regulations for Full-time Employees 
 
RI-7 Approval of Request for Substitution of Sub-Contractor – Public Works Contract 2015-05, The 

Centre at Sycamore Plaza Boiler Replacement 
 
RI-8 Approval of Purchase of Bulk and CO2 Tanks for Mayfair and McCormick Pools 



City Council Agenda 
March 22, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
 

Any qualified individual with a disability that would exclude that individual from participating in or attending the above meeting should contact the City 
Clerk’s Office, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA, at 562/866-9771, ext. 2200; at least 48 hours prior to the above meeting to ensure that reasonable 

arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or other reasonable auxiliary aids or services may be provided. 
 

Copies of staff reports and other writings pertaining to this agenda are available for public review during regular business hours 
in the Office of the City Clerk, 5050 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, CA  90712 

LEGISLATION: 
2.1 Adoption of Signature Resolutions 
 a. Resolution No. 2016-13; Authorizing the City Treasurer to Deposit Funds for Safekeeping and 

Investment and Authorizing the Withdrawal of Funds from Depositories 
 
 b. Resolution No. 2016-14; Authorizing the Use of the Facsimile Signature of the Mayor in the 

Execution of Public Securities and Instruments of Payment 
 
 c. Resolution No. 2016-15; Authorizing the Use of the Facsimile Signature of the Vice Mayor in the 

Execution of Public Securities and Instruments of Payment 
 
REPORTS: 
3.1 Volunteer Appreciation Month Activities 
 
 

AGENDA 
LAKEWOOD HOUSING SUCCESSOR AGENCY 

1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Minutes 
Lakewood City Council 

Regular Meeting held 
March 8, 2016 

  
 
MEETING WAS CALLED TO ORDER at 7:30 p.m. by Mayor Wood in the Council Chambers at 
the Civic Center, 5000 Clark Avenue, Lakewood, California. 
 
INVOCATION was offered by Reverend Dr. Paul Kim, Trinity United Methodist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE was led by Boy Scouts Troop 1776 
 
ROLL CALL:  PRESENT: Mayor Jeff Wood 
 Vice Mayor Ron Piazza 
 Council Member Steve Croft 
 Council Member Diane DuBois 
 Council Member Todd Rogers 
 

. . . 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: 
Mayor Wood announced that the flags in Lakewood and around the nation were at half-staff 
in honor of former First Lady Nancy Reagan, who passed away over the weekend, and that 
the meeting would be adjourned in her memory.  He also announced that Earth Walk would 
be held on Saturday, March 12 at Monte Verde Park.  Mayor Wood stated the City was 
seeking homes of senior, disabled or low-income residents that could use some exterior care 
as projects for Volunteer Day on Saturday, April 16. 
 
Council Member DuBois expressed gratitude to the Sheriff’s Department and City staff for 
their efforts in support of the recent Lakewood Community Run on a successful event. 
 
Council Member Rogers stated it had been an honor to attend, along with his colleagues, the 
oath taking ceremony and to offer personal congratulations to Anthony Rendon as the 70th 
Speaker of the Assembly. 
 
Environmental Programs Manager Konya Vivanti displayed slides and made a presentation 
describing the program which allowed residents to have bulky items picked up at their 
residence up to six times per year at no charge.  She provided a listing of acceptable items to 
be picked up under the Residential Bulky Item Pickup Program such as furniture, televisions 
and mattresses.  She explained that residents could drop off hazardous waste items, such as 
paints, thinners and solvents, to the Environmental Collection Center at EDCO’s facility in 
Signal Hill.  Ms. Vivanti stated that for those residents performing large clean-up projects, 
such as home or landscape improvements, EDCO offered temporary-use dumpsters and 
roll-off boxes at a reasonable cost. 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS AND PRESENTATIONS: - Continued 
Ms. Vivanti responded to Vice Mayor Piazza’s question by stating that the Saturday 
collection events had been intended for residents rather than commercial customers and there 
were limits to the quantity of items to be disposed of at the Signal Hill facility. 
 
In response to Mayor Wood’s inquiry, Ms. Vivanti explained that residents could report the 
scavenging of recyclables by calling the non-emergency Sheriff’s line. 
 

. . . 
 
ROUTINE ITEMS: 
COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS MOVED AND VICE MAYOR PIAZZA SECONDED TO 
APPROVE ROUTINE ITEMS 1 THROUGH 4. 
 
RI-1 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held February 23, 2016 
 
RI-2 Approval of Personnel Transactions 
 
RI-3 Approval of Registers of Demands 
 
RI-4 RESOLUTION NO. 2016-11;  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF LAKEWOOD ADDING A JOB CLASSIFICATION AND 
AMENDING EXISTING PAY RATE IN ATTACHMENT B OF RESOLUTION 
NO 2014-27 

 
UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.1 • GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT 
Sonia Southwell, Director of Community Development, displayed slides and provided a 
report based on the memo in the agenda and reported that the General Plan Annual Progress 
Report, a State-mandated document, summarized the framework for the City’s physical, 
social and economic development and identified the progress made towards allowing for the 
development of housing as specified by the Regional Housing Needs Assessment.  She stated 
it was the Planning and Environment Commission’s recommendation that the City Council 
receive and file the 2015 General Plan Annual Progress Report and direct staff to submit the 
same to the State Department of Housing and Community Development and the Governor’s 
Office of Planning and Research. 
 
Responding to an inquiry from Vice Mayor Piazza regarding the status of the Canvas project, 
Ms. Southwell stated that it was expected that the housing units would be completely sold 
and occupied by the end of the year. 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 
3.1 • GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT - Continued 
Council Member Rogers commented on the positive news regarding the growth in economic 
development in the City noting the success of projects such as the Orchard Supply Hardware 
store in providing jobs to Lakewood residents. 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE THE PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT COMMISSION’S 
RECOMMENDATIONS.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
3.2 • INVITATION FOR 2016 LAKEWOOD SHREDS EVENT 
The Environmental Programs Manager displayed slides and made a presentation regarding 
the upcoming Lakewood Shreds event on April 2nd.  She stated that the event would allow 
for the collection of up to three boxes of paper from Lakewood residents for on-site 
shredding, and would also include an e-waste collection for old computer components and 
televisions, as well as a free mulch giveaway. 
 

. . . 
 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY ACTIONS 
1.  Approval of Register of Demands 
COUNCIL MEMBER CROFT MOVED AND VICE MAYOR PIAZZA SECONDED TO 
APPROVE THE REGISTER OF DEMANDS.  UPON ROLL CALL VOTE, THE MOTION 
WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 
SUCCESSOR HOUSING ACTIONS 
1.  Approval of Registers of Demands 
COUNCIL MEMBER ROGERS MOVED AND COUNCIL MEMBER DUBOIS 
SECONDED TO APPROVE THE REGISTERS OF DEMANDS.  UPON ROLL CALL 
VOTE, THE MOTION WAS APPROVED: 
 
AYES:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  DuBois, Rogers, Piazza, Croft and Wood 
NAYS:  COUNCIL MEMBERS:  None 
 

. . . 
 



City Council Minutes 
March 8, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: 
Jonathan Taylor, Education Committee Chair of the National Association for Equal Justice in 
America, addressed the City Council regarding the return of local control to the Compton 
Community College District. 
 
Heidi Hutzler expressed concerns regarding the parking of commercial vehicles on 
residential streets. 
 

. . . 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business to be brought before the City Council, Mayor Wood 
adjourned the meeting at 8:14 p.m.  A moment of silence was observed in memory of Nancy 
Reagan. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Jo Mayberry, CMC 
City Clerk 





























 

















RI-8 

 COUNCIL AGENDA 
 March 22, 2016 
 
 
TO:  The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Purchase of Bulk and CO2 Tanks for Mayfair and McCormick Pools 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The City of Lakewood owns and operates two public swimming pools:  a 333,000 gallon plaster 
lined pool built in 1958 at Bolivar Park known as McCormick Pool, and 500,000 gallon pool 
built in 1954 at Mayfair Park. 
 
Each of the pools have extensive mechanical and disinfection systems to meet Los Angeles 
County Health Department requirements for public pools.  For over 10 years, bulk chlorine and 
hydrochloric acid have been purchased from one vendor who furnished the storage tanks for 
those chemicals.  The tanks are now at the end of their useful life, and purchasing our own 
storage tanks would allow the City to solicit bids for the chemicals without being restricted to 
buying chemicals from only the vendor who furnishes the tanks. 
 
STATEMENT OF FACT 
McCormick Pool has one 200 gallon chlorine tank, two 120 gallon hydrochloric acid tanks and 
one 600 pound CO2 tank. The CO2 tank is owned by the city, has a failed heater and pressure 
gages and leaks, and must be replaced. CO2 is used to slow the consumption of the other two 
chemicals.  The tanks are all more than ten years old. 
 
Mayfair Pool has one 300 and two 150 gallon chlorine tanks and two 120 gallon hydrochloric 
acid tanks which are now more than 13 years old.  Mayfair pool does not presently have a CO2 

tank and staff proposes to add CO2 to the system to conserve the use of the other chemicals. 
 
The chlorine and acid tanks have been furnished by our current chemical supplier, Brenntag 
Pacific, Inc., with the agreement that we must purchase our chemical supplies (chlorine and 
hydrochloric acid) only from them. Brenntag has a 600 gallon minimum delivery requirement 
per site for the chemical supplies, or a $75.00 delivery fee is added to each supply order.  
  
Annual Average Usage Acid (gal) Cost ($5.18/gal) Chlorine (gal) Cost ($1.69/gal) 
Mayfair Pool 960 $4,973 8,930 $15,092 
McCormick Pool 1056 $5,470 3,894 $6,581 
Total 2016 $10,443 12,824 $21,673 
 
For McCormick Pool, in FY 14-15 supply orders from Brenntag totaled $12,052, and we are on 
track to exceed that total for FY 15-16. 
 



Purchase of Bulk and CO2 Tanks for Mayfair and McCormick Pools 
March 22, 2016 
Page 2 of 3  
 
 

For Mayfair Pool, supply orders for FY 14-15 totaled $20,065 and we are on track for a similar 
total for FY 15/16. 
 
Concerned with the cost of chemical supplies, staff requested quotes from another chemical 
supplier and found that we could save approximately 50%, a potential savings of $6-8,000 per 
pool annually, if we could purchase our chemical supplies from a vendor other than Brenntag. 
 
At McCormick, staff proposes to purchase a replacement 600 lb CO2 tank, as well as a 350 
gallon chlorine tank and a 150 gallon acid tank.  The equipment room at McCormick is small, 
dictating the size of the tanks that will fit, resulting in more frequent deliveries. 
 
At Mayfair, staff proposes to purchase a 600 gallon CO2 tank, as well as 550 gallon and 350 
gallon chlorine tanks and a 150 gallon acid tank.  The equipment room at Mayfair is larger, 
allowing for the storage of more bulk liquid on site. 
 
In March 2016, Staff received quotes from Commercial Aquatics and Lincoln Aquatics for the 
removal of existing chemical supply tanks, and the purchase and installation of two chemical 
bulk tanks and one CO2 tank at each of pools as follows: 
 

Tank Purchase
   Commercial Aquatics  Lincoln  
Bulk Tanks – Mayfair (150 gal acid, 550 
gal & 750 gal chlorine) 

$                                     
5,953.16  $               5,982.52 

Co2 Tank – Mayfair 
$                                     

7,789.19  $               7,818.71 

Sub-Total 
$                                   

13,742.35  $             13,801.23 
     
Bulk Tank – McCormick  (150 gal acid, 
350 gal chlorine) 

$                                     
4,349.95  $               4,416.64 

Co2 Tank - McCormick 
$                                     

7,004.16  $               7,818.71 

Sub-Total 
$                                   

11,354.11  $             12,235.35 
     

Total 
$                                   

25,096.46  $             26,036.58 
 
The cost of the purchase of the bulk liquid tanks from the low bidder is $10,303.11.  At an 
estimated cost of $.94 per gallon for chlorine and $1.43 per gallon for acid on the open market, 
we would expect to pay for the purchase of the liquid tanks with the savings in chemical 







 

















 









 

 








